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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

NORTHERN DISTRICT OF GEORGIA 

ATLANTA DIVISION 

SPORTSWEAR COMPANY – S.p.A., 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

ACT AS PURCHASING AGENCY; ALLL-

ROUND; ALONZOW; AQKAN; ASD01; 

ASD09; ASD55; ASD88; ATTICOLDCAT 

QUALITY; BAIINE; BALMAIN JEANS; 

BAODING PENGYING CAPS AND 

GARMENTS CO., LTD.; BBBTO; 

BELIEF333; BELLA KOREA; BLACKGOD; 

BOEKA REBORN; BRYONY; CHENEL; 

CHENYUJIA; CHERJU; CHINA 

STONESTONE; CHINACPCOMPANY; 

CHINACPCOMPANY; CHRISTINE 

COUGHLIN; CHXLYU; CLOTHING338; 

CULIUDAIYU1314; DAFI-I; DEDICATED; 

DHGATESOKKS; DIGE OFFICIAL; 

DIGITAL TECHNOLOGY XIAOSHAN; 

DISENY; DOWNJACKET8; DREWBUYDAY; 

DUNHANG12; EARLYBIRDNO1; 

EASYPRODUCTSEU; ESKEEM HIPHOP; 

ETOPJ0SHOP; EXCURSIONIZING; 

FASHIONALSHDS; FIRST GRADE; 

FIRSTWIN; FLYBIRDS; FPMYGOODJOB; 

FUCLOTH; FULLNAMECO; FUNY LOO; 

GARY FUNNY; GENERAL MERCHANDISE 

GENERAL STORE; GHAFKL62AA; GOD 

GOOD DAY; GOJAMYDHGATE; 

GOODS2020; GUANLINTIN; HANFEI001; 

HAPAIS340; HAPPYFJALLRAVEN; 

HESHICAIJINGGOI; HIGHENDCHINA1; 
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HJDYHRTEST; HJDYHRTEST; 

HONEST1ENGS; HOTWINTER; 

HUANGWANSAN; HUJIEUHG; IJHWN; 

IPHONE 12; IRVINGLOCKERROOM18; 

JACQUELINEZUNIAGA:; JAMUESUI; 

JIANGCHENG780; JINGYUZULIA; 

JORDAN23SHOP; JUAN2018; 

JVTOUWANGMINGYUE; KANGQIAN6; 

KEVIN PARRISH; KOOLDHGATESO; LA 

VIA; LEISURE~FITNESS~3RD SHOP; 

LEONARD5011; LIANGWUDAOOKR; 

LIULALALA; LIVEX516; LOCA148237; 

LONG06; LONGXINGWEN5287;  

LUQIUTIN9; LUSHAN KAIQINYANG E-

COMMERCE CO., LTD.; LUXURYS 

DESIGNER BAGS; LV_BRAND; MEIYI01; 

MENGJIAO1114; MENLIAOJIAONEIJKT; 

MENS DESIGNER HOODIES; 

MILLERFASHIONSTUDIO; MKARLSON; 

MMLLUNS; MNIG ATTENTIVE HIGH-

END; MOSDHGATES; NASASPACE; 

NB,MRZY; NB999; NEW HANG; 

NICKYOUNG02; OFFWHITE; ORNATE; 

PENJIHUHAY; PGY HEHUOREN IRON ON 

STORETOP; POLO002; POLO004; PYP02; 

QISHANG521; QUALITY 2; QUANLITY 3; 

RAFTECH IMPEX; REMADELAB; 

REMADELAB; RENOEPIV; RICCU; 

RICCU2; RODNEY TORES; RUIXINGE; SA 

FILLE; SAMPSON; SHENYANSHOP; 

SHENZHEN F&TD; 

SHENZHENZHONGRUIHAISHANGKEJIYO

UXIANGONGSI; SHOP5254142; 

SHOP5364238; SHOP5619155; SHOP5873352; 

SHOP5883773; SHOP910354346; 

SHOP910361050; SHOP910372131; 

SHOP910416067; SHOP910440150; 
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SHOP910561380; SHOP910638001; 

SHOP910736086; SHOP910798004; 

SHOP910937044; SHOP910952044; 

SHOP911109218; SHOP911124046; 

SHOP911132288; SHOP911137292; 

SHOP911139125; SHOP911139188; 

SHOP911207237; SHOP911233160; 

SHOP911234034; SHOP911266371; 

SHOP911295169; SHOP911304037; 

SHOP911305189; SHOP911334141; 

SHOP911355007; SHOP911386010; 

SHOP911386025; SHORKET; SHUYAOMM; 

SIHUA1; SONGCHENHUI820; SSSS+ 

QUALITY; STEVENGOHOMES; 

STONE_PIRATE001; SUTOPEAN; 

SVIPSHOP001; SVIPSHOP002; 

SVIPSHOP003; SVIPSHOP004; 

SVIPSHOP006; SVIPSHOP007; 

SVIPSHOP009; SVIPSHOP010; TAIAN 

BOWINS GARMENT CO., LTD.; TAIAN 

LEGEND GARMENT CO., LTD.; 

TANGSIYUAN916616; TAOTAOKU; 

TAYSOEZJMRPL; TBFASHION2020; THE 

FIRST STORE OF EXPORT; TIN778; TO 

SINCERE; TRAD180; TX SIX; UIONSASUU; 

UOVH70WERN; VOGOCM_ZB7; 

WANGQUAN; WANGSHULIANG11223344; 

WANGWEI118; WINMOON; WINTER020; 

WUSHU2018; WUXIAONAFANG; XIAN2018; 

XUE01; XUELICANYANG; 

XUEWEISHANGPU; XYF8888999; YAN 

SESHOOP; YEJIEWNGS; YICIYA 

TAILORED; YILIAAA; YKW0212; YOUR 

PHONE CASES; YOUR-STYLE1987; 

YUNBOUTIQUESTOREC; 

ZHANGMEI5636956; ZHANGXIA5521; 

ZHAOLAOBAN168; ZHC PHONE COQUE 
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42; ZHC33 FORTUNE; ZHENXIYONGJIU; 

ZQ_STONE_ISLAND, 
 

Defendants. 

COMPLAINT 

1) This is an action for federal trademark infringement and 

counterfeiting, and false designation of origin, in violation of 15 U.S.C. §§ 1051 et 

seq., and common law trademark infringement and unfair competition.  

2) This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over the federal trademark 

infringement, counterfeiting, and false designation of origin claims pursuant to 

15 U.S.C. § 1121. This Court has supplemental jurisdiction over the remaining 

common law claims pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1367. 

3) This Court has personal jurisdiction over the Defendants because 

Defendants, on information and belief, transact business within Georgia or have 

committed a tortious injury within Georgia caused by an act or omission outside 

the state and regularly do or solicit business, or engage in other persistent courses 

of conduct, or derive substantial revenue from goods used or consumed in Georgia.  

4) Alternatively, this Court has personal jurisdiction over the Defendants 

pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 4(k)(2) if any given Defendant is not 

subject to the jurisdiction of any state’s court of general jurisdiction, because 
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exercising jurisdiction over each Defendant is consistent with the United States 

Constitution and its laws. 

5) Venue is appropriate in this judicial district pursuant to 28 

U.S.C. § 1391 because a substantial part of the property that is the subject of the 

action is situated in this district, and/or because the Defendants are subject to 

personal jurisdiction in this district, and/or because Defendants do not reside in the 

United States and, therefore, may be sued in any judicial district. 

THE PARTIES 

6) Plaintiff Sportswear Company – S.p.A. is an Italian joint stock 

company with its principal place of business at Via Confine 2161, 41017 Ravarino, 

Modena, Italy. 

7) On information and belief, Defendants Act as purchasing agency; alll-

round; Alonzow; aqkan; asd01; ASD09; ASD55; ASD88; AtticOldCat Quality; 

Baiine; Balmain Jeans; Baoding Pengying Caps And Garments Co., Ltd.; BBBTO; 

belief333; Bella Korea; BlackGod; boeka reborn; Bryony; Chenel; Chenyujia; 

Cherju; china stonestone; Chinacpcompany; chinacpcompany; Christine Coughlin; 

ChXlYu; clothing338; culiudaiyu1314; DAFI-I; Dedicated; dhgatesokks; DIGE 

Official; Digital technology Xiaoshan; Diseny; downjacket8; drewbuyday; 

dunhang12; Earlybirdno1; EasyProductsEU; ESKEEM HIPHOP; etopj0shop; 
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excursionizing; fashionalshds; First grade; Firstwin; FlybirdS; fpmygoodjob; 

fucloth; fullnameco; FUNY LOO; Gary Funny; General merchandise general store; 

ghafkl62aa; god good day; gojamydhgate; goods2020; guanlintin; hanfei001; 

hapais340; happyfjallraven; HeshicaijinggOi; highendchina1; hjdyhrtest; 

hjdyhrtest; honest1engs; HotWinter; huangwansan; hujieuhg; IJHWN; iphone 12; 

irvinglockerroom18; JACQUELINEZUNIAGA:; jamuesui; jiangcheng780; 

jingyuzulia; jordan23shop; juan2018; jvtouwangmingyue; kangqian6; Kevin 

Parrish; kooldhgateso; La Via; Leisure~Fitness~3rd shop; leonard5011; 

LiangwudaooKr; Liulalala; livex516; loca148237; long06; longxingwen5287;  

Luqiutin9; Lushan Kaiqinyang E-Commerce Co., Ltd.; luxurys designer bags; 

lv_brand; meiyi01; mengjiao1114; MenliaojiaoneijKt; mens designer hoodies; 

MillerFashionStudio; MKARLSON; mmlluns; MNIG Attentive High-End; 

mosdhgates; nasaspace; NB,MRZY; NB999; New Hang; nickyoung02; offwhite; 

ornate; penjihuhay; PGY HEHUOREN IRON ON StoreTop; polo002; polo004; 

pyp02; qishang521; QUALITY 2; QUANLITY 3; RAFTECH IMPEX; 

RemadeLab; REMADELAB; renoepiv; Riccu; Riccu2; Rodney Tores; Ruixinge; 

Sa fille; Sampson; shenyanshop; Shenzhen F&TD; 

shenzhenzhongruihaishangkejiyouxiangongsi; Shop5254142; Shop5364238; 

Shop5619155; Shop5873352; Shop5883773; Shop910354346; Shop910361050; 
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Shop910372131; Shop910416067; Shop910440150; Shop910561380; 

Shop910638001; Shop910736086; Shop910798004; Shop910937044; 

Shop910952044; Shop911109218; Shop911124046; Shop911132288; 

Shop911137292; Shop911139125; Shop911139188; Shop911207237; 

Shop911233160; Shop911234034; Shop911266371; Shop911295169; 

Shop911304037; Shop911305189; Shop911334141; Shop911355007; 

Shop911386010; Shop911386025; Shorket; shuyaomm; Sihua1; Songchenhui820; 

SSSS+ Quality; stevengohomes; stone_pirate001; sutopean; svipshop001; 

svipshop002; svipshop003; svipshop004; svipshop006; svipshop007; svipshop009; 

svipshop010; Taian Bowins Garment Co., Ltd.; Taian Legend Garment Co., Ltd.; 

tangsiyuan916616; TAOTAOKU; taysoezjmrpl; tbfashion2020; The first store of 

export; tin778; To Sincere; trad180; TX SIX; uionsasuu; uovh70wern; 

vogocm_zb7; Wangquan; wangshuliang11223344; wangwei118; Winmoon; 

Winter020; wushu2018; wuxiaonafang; xian2018; xue01; xuelicanyang; 

XUEWEISHANGPU; XYF8888999; Yan Seshoop; yejiewngs; YICIYA Tailored; 

Yiliaaa; ykw0212; Your phone cases; your-style1987; yunboutiquestorec; 

zhangmei5636956; zhangxia5521; zhaolaoban168; ZHC phone coque 42; zhc33 

fortune; zhenxiyongjiu; and zq_stone_island (“Defendants”) are foreign entities, 

associations, or individuals with unknown locations, all of whom advertise and sell 
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a variety of goods through their virtual storefronts on various e-commerce 

marketplaces, such as Alibaba, AliExpress, DHGate, Amazon, Ebay, and/or Wish 

(each a “Marketplace” and collectively the “Marketplaces”). 

8) Each Defendant is known to Plaintiff only by its unique Marketplace 

name and ID number.  

9) On information and belief, Defendants offer for sale, sell, and ship 

goods to customers in the United States, including in this judicial district, through 

their virtual storefronts on the Marketplaces. 

RELEVANT FACTS 

Plaintiff’s Trademarks 

10) Plaintiff is a well-known manufacturer and distributor of premium 

men’s and junior’s luxury sportswear garments and accessories, including but not 

limited to outerwear, knitwear, shirts, pants, footwear, and bags, sold under various 

well-known trademarks. 

11) Plaintiff owns numerous federal trademark applications and 

registrations for its valuable trademarks, including, but not limited to, STONE 

ISLAND and the STONE ISLAND COMPASS LOGO. Attached hereto as 

Exhibit A are true and correct copies of certificates of registration reflecting 

Plaintiff’s federal trademarks (collectively, “Marks” or “Plaintiff’s Marks”).  
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12) Each of the registrations for Plaintiff’s Marks is valid and enforceable. 

13) Plaintiff has used its Marks in commerce since at least as early as 

1983 and has not abandoned any of the Marks. 

14) As a result of Plaintiff’s extensive advertising and promotion of its 

goods under Plaintiff’s Marks, Plaintiff’s Marks have achieved considerable 

goodwill throughout the United States and the world. 

15) On information and belief, Defendants offer for sale and sell a wide 

variety of goods to customers in the United States, including in this judicial 

district. 

16) On information and belief, Defendants routinely sell goods bearing 

counterfeit or infringing marks of well-known trademark owners. 

17) On information and belief, Defendants hide their true identities by 

using aliases, withholding or providing false contact information, or otherwise 

using false and deceptive means to avoid detection. 

18) Defendants are using in commerce colorable imitations of one or more 

of Plaintiff’s Marks, or marks that are confusingly similar to one or more of 

Plaintiff’s Marks, on or in connection with the advertising and sale of goods that 

are similar to or compete with Plaintiff’s well-known goods. 
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19) Defendants are advertising and selling goods bearing counterfeit or 

infringing copies of Plaintiff’s Marks through their respective virtual storefronts on 

the Marketplaces. 

20) Plaintiff and/or the undersigned counsel have reviewed all of the 

product listings at issue for each Defendant and confirmed that (a) each Defendant 

is using a spurious mark which is identical with or substantially indistinguishable 

from one or more of Plaintiff’s Marks on non-genuine reproductions of Plaintiff’s 

goods; or (b) each Defendant is using a mark confusingly similar to one or more of 

Plaintiff’s Marks in association with the marketing or sale of other goods and in 

such a manner as to confuse customers into believing the goods are genuine.  

21) None of the Defendants are authorized to offer for sale or sell goods 

bearing any of Plaintiff’s Marks. Genuine goods bearing Plaintiff’s Marks may be 

purchased only from Plaintiff directly or from authorized retailers. 

22) Based on the undersigned counsel’s experience prosecuting similar 

cases, Defendants likely operate multiple virtual storefronts within and across 

multiple Marketplaces, are related to the manufacturers or suppliers of the 

counterfeit and/or infringing goods, coordinate with each other to acquire, market, 

sell, and distribute counterfeit and/or infringing goods, sell the counterfeit and/or 

infringing goods through the same limited number of e-commerce marketplace 
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platforms that are well-known as sources of counterfeit and/or infringing goods, 

share images and information about the counterfeit and/or infringing goods for use 

on their Marketplace storefronts, and participate in on-line forums dedicated to 

informing Marketplace sellers of new lawsuits and sharing defense and settlement 

strategies, and, therefore, form a “chain of distribution.” 

23) As members of a “chain of distribution” of counterfeit and/or 

infringing goods, Defendants are liable as joint tortfeasors. 

COUNT I. 

INFRINGEMENT OF A REGISTERED TRADEMARK  

IN VIOLATION OF 15 U.S.C. § 1114 

 

24) Paragraphs 1-23 are realleged and incorporated herein by reference. 

25) Defendants are using marks or symbols in commerce that are likely to 

cause confusion, or to cause mistake, or to deceive, and likely to cause purchasers 

and potential purchasers to falsely believe that Defendants’ goods are sponsored 

by, approved by, or affiliated with Plaintiff, or that Plaintiff’s goods are sponsored 

by, approved by, or affiliated with Defendants. 

26) Defendants are using in commerce marks or symbols that are identical 

to, substantially indistinguishable from, colorable imitations of, or confusingly 

similar to Plaintiff’s Marks, and the unauthorized use of Plaintiff’s Marks by 

Defendants in commerce is likely to cause damage and other irreparable injury to 
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Plaintiff unless such use is enjoined by this Court, Plaintiff having no adequate 

remedy at law. 

27) Defendants’ use of marks in commerce that are identical to, 

substantially indistinguishable from, colorable imitations of, or confusingly similar 

to Plaintiff’s Marks constitutes an infringement of Plaintiff’s rights in and to its 

federally registered Marks in violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1114. 

28) After a reasonable opportunity for further investigation and discovery, 

it is likely the evidence will show that Defendants’ aforesaid acts have been and 

are being committed with knowledge of Plaintiff’s Marks, and that such acts are 

likely to cause confusion, or to cause mistake, or to deceive. Defendants’ acts are 

therefore intentional, willful, and are maliciously calculated to cause confusion, to 

cause mistake, or to deceive. As such, this is an exceptional case. 

29) In accordance with 15 U.S.C. § 1117, Plaintiff is entitled to recover 

from Defendants: (1) their profits, (2) any damages sustained by Plaintiff, and (3) 

the costs of the instant action. Further, based upon the nature of Defendants’ 

violation of Plaintiff’s trademark rights, Plaintiff is entitled to reasonable 

attorney’s fees, treble damages, and/or enhanced profits. 
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30) Plaintiff is further entitled to an award of three times its damages or 

Defendants’ profits for those Defendants found to be intentionally using a 

counterfeit mark, pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1117(b).  

31) Alternatively, Plaintiff may elect at any time before judgment to 

recover, instead of actual damages or profits, an award of statutory damages of not 

less than $1,000 or more than $2,000,000 per counterfeit mark per type of good 

sold or offered for sale.  

32) Plaintiff has been or is likely to be irreparably damaged by 

Defendants’ use of counterfeit and/or infringing marks in the United States and 

will continue to be irreparably damaged unless such use is immediately and 

permanently enjoined by this Court. 

COUNT II. 

FEDERAL UNFAIR COMPETITION IN VIOLATION OF 

15 U.S.C. § 1125(a) 

 

33) Paragraphs 1-23 are realleged and incorporated herein by reference. 

34) In marketing and selling their goods in commerce in the United States, 

Defendants have used in connection with their goods a false designation of origin 

that is likely to cause confusion, to cause mistake, or to deceive others to believe 

that Defendants’ goods are sponsored by, approved by, originate with, or are 

affiliated with Plaintiff, or that Plaintiff’s goods are sponsored by, approved by, 
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originate with, or are affiliated with Defendants. Defendants have caused their 

goods to be offered for sale in commerce with knowledge of such false designation 

of origin or description or representation. 

35) Defendants have willfully promoted in commerce the sale of their 

goods in a manner so as to falsely designate an origin or an association with 

Plaintiff or with Plaintiff’s Marks, so as to be likely to cause confusion or mistake 

among purchasers as to the true origin, source, sponsorship, or affiliation of 

Plaintiff’s or Defendants’ goods, all to Defendants’ profit and to Plaintiff’s 

damage. 

36) Plaintiff has been and/or will be irreparably damaged by the use of 

such false designation and/or representation and will continue to be irreparably 

damaged unless Defendants are preliminarily and permanently enjoined by this 

Court, Plaintiff having no adequate remedy at law. 

37) Defendants’ acts constitute unfair competition, false designation of 

origin, and false description in violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a).  

38) In accordance with 15 U.S.C. § 1117, Plaintiff is entitled to recover 

from Defendants: (1) their profits, (2) any damages sustained by Plaintiff, and (3) 

the costs of the instant action. Further, based upon the willful nature of 
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Defendants’ violation of Plaintiff’s trademark rights, Plaintiff is entitled to 

reasonable attorney’s fees and the trebling of such profits or damages. 

COUNT III. 

COMMON LAW TRADEMARK INFRINGEMENT AND UNFAIR 

COMPETITION 

 

39) Paragraphs 1-23 are realleged and incorporated herein by reference. 

40) Defendants’ use of marks that are confusingly similar to Plaintiff’s 

Marks, in connection with goods which are the same as or are competitive with the 

goods of Plaintiff, is likely to cause confusion, to cause mistake, and to deceive. 

41) Defendants are offering their goods for sale with full knowledge of 

Plaintiff’s Marks. 

42) Defendants have promoted and offered for sale their goods in such a 

manner as to suggest an association, affiliation, or sponsorship with, or approval by 

Plaintiff, or so as to cause, or be likely to cause, confusion or mistake among 

purchasers as to the origin or sponsorship of Plaintiff’s or Defendants’ goods, all to 

Defendants’ profit and to Plaintiff’s damage. 

43) The aforesaid conduct of Defendants constitutes infringement of 

Plaintiff’s common law rights in and to Plaintiff’s Marks and further constitutes 

common law unfair competition, all of which has irreparably damaged and/or will 

irreparably damage Plaintiff, together with its goodwill and reputation, unless 
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Defendants are enjoined and restrained by this Court, Plaintiff having no adequate 

remedy at law. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for a judgment of the Court as follows: 

1) That Defendants, and those persons in active concert or participation 

with Defendants, be preliminarily and permanently enjoined and restrained from 

advertising, offering for sale, or selling any goods under or in connection with 

Plaintiff’s Marks or any other designation, trademark, or service mark that is likely 

to cause confusion, mistake, or deception as to the source or sponsorship of 

Plaintiff’s or Defendants’ goods, or from otherwise infringing Plaintiff’s Marks;  

2) That an accounting be conducted and judgment be rendered against 

Defendants for: 

a) all profits received by Defendants from the sale of goods under 

or in connection with Plaintiff’s Marks in the United States; 

b) all damages in an amount proven at trial from, inter alia, 

Defendants’ trademark infringement, unfair competition, false designation of 

origin and false description or representation, pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1051 

et seq.; and  
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c) any other actual and compensatory damages in an amount not 

presently known but to be computed during the pendency of this action. 

3) That any damages assessed against Defendants for trademark 

infringement and unfair competition be trebled as provided by 15 U.S.C. § 1117, 

and any profits be enhanced as warranted; 

4) Alternatively, that Plaintiff be awarded statutory damages from each 

Defendant found to be using a counterfeit mark of no less than $1,000 and no more 

than $2,000,000 per mark per type of good sold;  

5) That Defendants be directed to file with the Court and serve upon 

Plaintiff, no later than thirty (30) days after the issuance of an injunction, a report 

in writing and under oath, setting forth in detail the manner and form in which each 

has complied with the injunctions requested in the immediately preceding 

paragraphs and any other provision of this Court’s Order; 

6) That Plaintiff have and recover its costs in this suit, including but not 

limited to reasonable attorney’s fees and expenses; and 

7) That Plaintiff have such other and further relief as this Court may 

deem just and proper. 
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Dated: January 29, 2021. 

Respectfully submitted, 

THE SLADKUS LAW GROUP 

s/Carrie A. Hanlon   

Carrie A. Hanlon 

Ga. Bar No. 289725 

E-mail: carrie@sladlaw.com 

Jeffrey B. Sladkus  

Ga. Bar No. 651220 

E-mail: jeff@sladlaw.com 

Jason H. Cooper 

Ga. Bar No. 778884 

E-mail: jason@sladlaw.com 

Bao-Ngoc Kim Dang 

Ga. Bar No. 781673 

E-Mail: kim@sladlaw.com 

 

1397 Carroll Drive 

Atlanta, GA 30318 

Telephone: (404) 252-0900 

Facsimile: (404) 252-0970 
 

Attorneys for Plaintiff 
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